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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA
Civil Action, File Number /. d - 32 Z 0 7@/‘/6— / yf 6

Mohamed Guled Abdi, trustee for the
Heirs and next-of-kin of
Ahmed Mohamed Guled, Decedent,

Plaintiff,

COMPLAINT

VS.

Officer Christopher Garbisch, JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
Officer Jeffrey Newman,

Officer Shawn Powell,

Officer Chad Conner,

Officer Brandon Bartholomew,

Officer Chris Tucker, and

The City of Minneapolis,

Defendants.

Plaintiff, as trustee for the heirs and next-of-kin of Ahmed Mohamed Guled, for his
complaint and causes of action against the above-named Defendants, alleges and states as
follows:

INTRDUCTION
1. This is an action for damages arising out of an incident which occurred on or about

February 6, 2009, on Morgan Avenue North located in the City of Minneapolis, County

of Hennepin, State of Minnesota, where Defendant City of Minneapolis police officers

Christopher Garbisch, Jeffrey Newman, Shawn Powell, Chad Conner, Brandon
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Bartholomew, and Chris Tucker, acting in the course and scope of their official capacity
and under color of state law, without reasonable justification, used excessive force and
deadly force in an attempt to stop, detain and arrest Decedent Ahmed Mohamed Guled.
The Defendants, without justification, intentionally and brutally assaulted, battered,
tortured, inflicted emotional distress and killed Decedent, when he posed no objective
risk of substantial bodily harm or death to any individual. As a direct a proximate result
of the use of unreasonable, excessive and deadly force, Decedent was shot multiple times
and killed from the gunshot wounds. Decedent and his family suffered death, the
deprivation of constitutional rights and pecuniary losses.

. That Decedent's father, Mohamed Guled Abdi, was duly appointed as trustee for the
purposes of commencing the above-entitled action on January 24, 2011, approved by the
court in Hennepin County District Court for the State of Minnesota, found by civil filing
27-CV-11-24117.

. That the plaintiff, Trustee herein, alleges claims under 24 U.S.C 1983 against the
Defendants for violating Decedent's constitutional rights, including, but limited to, the
right to not be subject to unreasonable, excessive and deadly force by peace officers, and
Decedent’s rights to due process under the 14" Amendment. Plaintiff’s claims are based
upon defendant police officers’ use of excessive force and deadly force against the
Decedent.

. Plaintiff also alleges state tort claims against the Defendants for wrongful death under
Minn. Stat. 573.02. The trustee seeks compensatory and punitive damages on behalf of

all the heirs and next-of-kin of Decedent.
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. Plaintiff alleges claims against the City of Minneapolis under state law for vicarious
liability and direct liability for negligently hiring, training, supervising, controlling and
retaining the individually named Defendants. Plaintiff, as trustee, seeks compensatory
damages, punitive damages and statutory damages from the City of Minneapolis.

. Plaintiff alleges claims against the City of Minneapolis, their employees and agents, for
knowingly allowing Decedent to be intentionally assaulted, beaten, tortured and killed in
the area of Morgan Avenue North, City of Minneapolis, County of Hennepin, State of
Minnesota.

. Plaintiff demands a jury trial.

II. PARTIES

. That said Decedent was born on January 1, 1985, in Somalia and died on February 6,
2009 as the result of homicide. At the time of his death, Decedent resided at 1247 Saint
Anthony Avenue, Apartment 820, Saint Paul, Minnesota.

. That Decedent is survived by the following heirs and next-of-kin:

a. Mohamed Guled Abdi; Born 1-3-62; Father; 1247 Saint Anthony Avenue, Apt.
820, Saint Paul, Minnesota.

b. Wile Mohamed Guled; Born 1-1-88; Brother; Seattle, WA

c. Sulekh Mohamed Guled; Born 1-1-91; Sister; 1247 Saint Anthony Avenue,
Apartment 820, Saint Paul, Minnesota.

d. Ardo Osman; Birthday unknown; Mother; Ethiopia, Address Unknown.

10. That as set forth above, Decedent’s father Mohamed Guled Abdi, has been appointed by

the Hennepin County District Court as Trustee for the purposes of commencing this
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11.

12.

13.

14.

instant cause of action. For all times material herein, the Trustee resides at 1247 Saint
Anthony Avenue, Apt. 820, Saint Paul, Minnesota.
That defendant police officers Christopher Garbisch, Jeffrey Newman, Shawn Powell,
Chad Conner, Brandon Bartholomew, and Chris Tucker, for all times material herein,
were employees, agents and/or servants of the City of Minneapolis. That for all times
material herein and relevant to this action, the Defendants were acting in such capacity
and within the course and scope of their official employment duties and under color of
state law. Each individual named defendant is sued individually and in their official
capacity.
That defendant City of Minneapolis is a statutory municipality and is the employer of the
individually named defendant police officers, and is responsible for their hiring, training,
retention, control and supervision. That Defendant City of Minneapolis is jointly and
vicariously liable for the actions of its employees, agent and servants.
That the Defendants are not entitled to the defense of qualified immunity.

III. FACTS
That on or about February 6, 2009, Decedent operated a vehicle in the area of Morgan
Avenue North in the City of Minneapolis, and at that time one or more of the individually
named Defendants were following behind Decedent in one or more squad cars to conduct
a traffic stop of Decedent. At the time Decedent was operating the vehicle on Morgan
Avenue North, one or more of the individually named Defendants were also positioned
ahead of Decedent on Morgan Avenue North for the purpose of an unrelated police call
not involving Decedent, when suddenly and without warning several of the individually

named Defendants, opened fire with their weapons, directing gunfire toward Decedent.



CASE 0:12-cv-00306-JNE-JJG Document 1 Filed 02/06/12 Page 5 of 10

Decedent was shot multiple times by the Defendants and died on the scene from multiple
gunshot wounds.

15. That as a direct and proximate result of the Defendants’ actions and Decedent’s death, the
heirs and next of kin of Decedent have suffered extreme emotional distress, pecuniary
loss, the loss of Decedent’s aid, comfort, society, companionship, guidance and
protection and have otherwise suffered damages all to their detriment in a sum well in
excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars and mo/100 ($50,000.00).

16. That the Defendants herein acted both negligently and intentionally in committing all the
above-described acts and causing the wrongful death of Decedent; that the Defendants
acted deliberately, intentionally and with malice in shooting and killing Decedent.

17. That the Defendants acted in bad faith and with clear reckless disregard to Decedent’s

rights and showed willful indifference to his civil rights and safety.

FEDERAL CLLAIMS FOR RELIEF AGAINST INDIVIDUAL DEFENDANTS
FORST CLAIM: VIOLATIONS OF 42 U.S.C. SECTION 1983
COUNT 1

18. Plaintiff hereby re-alleges and incorporates by reference all the facts and allegations
contained in paragraphs 1 through 17 of this Complaint.

19. Defendants, acting under color of state law, deprived Plaintiff of his rights, privileges and
immunities secured by the Constitution and laws, in violations of 42 U.S.C 1983, and by
committing acts in violation of the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendment's protection
against unreasonable stops, detentions, searches, seizures, and arrests and the Fourteenth

Amendment guarantees of life, liberty and property, by using excessive, unreasonable



20.

21.

22.
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and deadly/lethal force against Decedent; and, for killing Decedent; and for allowing
Decedent to be gunned down and killed by the Defendants acting in the course and scope
of their official capacity and while under color of state law. The actions of the defendant
officers committed against Decedent while stopping, seizing, detaining, arresting and
seérching him constituted greater force than would have appeared to a reasonable person
under like circumstances to be necessary. Furthermore, one or more of the named
Defendants intentionally disregarded the rights and safety of Decedent, intentionally
disregarded settled police procedure and policies and state law, and allowed other named
Defendants to shoot Decedent numerous times and be killed by fellow officers.

That as a direct result of the Defendants’ conduct, the heirs and next-of-kin of Decedent

suffered the damages set forth in Paragraph 15.

FEDERAL CLAIMS AGAINST THE CITY OF MINNEAPOLIS:
FAILURE TO ADEQUATELY HIRE, TRAIN AND SUPERVISE POLICE
OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES
COUNT II
Plaintiff hereby re-alleges and incorporates by reference all the facts and allegations
contained in paragraphs 1 through 20 on this Complaint.
Defendant City of Minneapolis was negligent in hiring, supervising, training, controlling
and retaining Defendants Christopher Garbisch, Jeffrey Newman, Shawn Powell, Chad
Conner, Brandon Bartholomew, and Chris Tucker in a manner amounting to deliberate

indifference to the constitutional rights of the Decedent and his heirs and next-of-kin.
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23.

24,

25.

By failing to adequately hire, train and supervise Defendants Christopher Garbisch,
Jeffrey Newman, Shawn Powell, Chad Conner, Brandon Bartholomew, and Chris
Tucker, Defendant City of Minneapolis encouraged and implicitly authorized Defendants
to use unreasonable, excessive and deadly/lethal force against Decedent thereby
depriving him, and his heirs and next-of-kin, of their rights under the U.S. Constitution
and 42 U.S.C. 1983. That the City of Minneapolis had improper municipal policies,
procedures and guidelines amounting to the deprivation of civil rights to individuals and
Plaintiff and Decedent herein. That one or more the individually named Defendants
negligently and intentionally failed to supervise the others to prevent them from using
excessive, deadly and lethal force against the Decedent.

As a result of Defendant City of Minneapolis’ negligence in the hiring, supervising and
retaining of Defendants Christopher Garbisch, Jeffrey Newman, Shawn Powell, Chad
Conner, Brandon Bartholomew, and Chris Tucker and the City’s negligence in failing to
adequately train and supervise Defendants Christopher Garbisch, Jeffrey Newman,
Shawn Powell, Chad Conner, Brandon Bartholomew, and Chris Tucker in the City’s
promulgation and implementation of certain policies, guidelines and procedures,

Decedent and his heirs and next of kin suffered the damages described in paragraph 15 of

this Complaint.
INTENTIONAL TORTS
COUNT I1I
Plaintiff hereby re-alleges and incorporates by reference all the facts and allegations

contained in paragraphs 1 through 24 of this Complaint.
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26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Defendant Christopher Garbisch, Jeffrey Newman, Shawn Powell, Chad Conner,
Brandon Bartholomew, and Chris Tucker’s use of deadly/lethal force against Decedent,
which was extreme and outrageous, constituted assault, battery and intentional infliction
of emotional distress; and constituted homicide, wrongful death and unjustified killing of
Decedent.

As a direct and proximate result of the assault, battery and intentional infliction of
emotional distress; and constituted homicide, wrongful death and unjustified killing of
Decedent, Decedent’s heirs and next-of-kin suffered damages as set forth in paragraph 15

of this Complaint.

STATE CLAIMS AGAINS THE CITY OF MINNEAPOLIS

COUNTY IV

Plaintiff hereby re-alleges and incorporates by reference all the facts and allegations
contained in paragraphs 1 through 27 of this Complaint.

Defendant City of Minneapolis was negligent in the hiring, supervision, control and
retention of Defendants Christopher Garbisch, Jeffrey Newman, Shawn Powell, Chad
Conner, Brandon Bartholomew, and Chris Tucker.

As a result of the City of Minneapolis’ negligence, Decedent and his heirs and next-of —

kin suffered the damages described in paragraph 15 of this Complaint.



31.

32.

33.

34.

35.
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STATE CLAIMS AGAINST DEFENDANTS CHRISTOPHER GARBISCH,
JEFFREY NEWMAN, SHAWN POWELL, CHAD CONNER, BRANDON
BARTHOLOMEW AND CHRIS TUCKER
COUNT V

Plaintiff hereby re-alleges and incorporates by reference all the facts and allegations
contained in paragraphs 1 through 30 of this Complaint.
That Defendants Christopher Garbisch, Jeffrey Newman, Shawn Powell, Chad Conner,
Brandon Bartholomew, and Chris Tucker, individually and as to the other named
Defendants, were negligent and further guilty of malfeasance for failing to properly
supervise and control the others’ actions énd for failing to intervene and for allowing
Decedent to be shot and killed.
As a result of the negligence of Christopher Garbisch, Jeffrey Newman, Shawn Powell,
Chad Conner, Brandon Bartholomew, and Chris Tucker, Decedent and his heirs and

next-of —kin suffered the damages described in paragraph 15 of this Complaint.

VICARIOUS LIABILITY OF DEFENDNAT CITY OF MINNEAPOLIS
COUNT VI
Plaintiff hereby re-alleges and incorporates by reference all the facts and allegations
contained in paragraphs 1 through 33 of this Complaint.
That Defendant City of Minneapolis is vicariously and supervisorally liable for the
actions of their police officers, Defendants herein, and the damages flowing therefrom,

pursuant to the doctrines of Respondeat Superior and Master Servant. Defendant City of
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Minneapolis is also required to indemnify their employees, agents and servants pursuant

to Minn. Stat. 466.07 and other settled law.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against the Defendants as follows:
RELIEF REQUESTED

1. Awarding judgment in favor of Plaintiff, as trustee for the heirs and next-of-kin of
Decedent, against the Defendants, jointly and severally, in an amount in excess of
Fifty Thousand and no/100 ($50,000.00) Dollars as and for compensatory damages.

2. Awarding judgment in favor of Plaintiff, as trustee for the heirs and next-of-kin of
Decedent, against the Defendants, jointly and severally, in an amount in excess of
Fifty Thousand and no/100 ($50,000.00) Dollars as and for punitive damages.

3. Awarding Plaintiff, as trustee for the heirs and next-of-kin of Decedent, his costs and
disbursements incurred herein.

4. For such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.

Dated: .2 _ 2,7 o P— G
’ Mohamed Guled Abdi
1247 Saint Anthony Avenue, Apt. 820
Saint Paul, Minnesota
(612) 423-7590

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The undersigned hereby acknowledges that costs, disbursements, and reasonable attorney
and witness fees may be awarded pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 549.211, Subd. 2 and Fed. R. Civ.
Pro. 11 to the party against whom the allegations in this pleadings are asserted.

Dated: JQ ~& "’,2‘7 {7 M kD
Mohamed Guled Abdi

10
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